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AFFIDAVIT

Comes the Affiant, Phillip Gunning, Executive Director, and after being first
duly sworn, states under penalty of perjury as follows:

1. His/her name is Phillip Gunning, and he/she is the individual submitting the
proposal or is the authorized representative of NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc., the entity
submitting the proposal (hereinafter referred to as "Proposer").

2. Proposer will pay all taxes and fees, which are owed to the Lexington-Fayette
Urban County Government at the time the proposal is submitted, prior to award of
the contract and will maintain a "current" status in regard to those taxes and fees
during the life of the contract.

3. Proposer will obtain a Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government business
license, if applicable, prior to award of the contract.

4. Proposer has authorized the Division of Central Purchasing to verify the above-
mentioned information with the Division of Revenue and to disclose to the Urban
County Council that taxes and/or fees are delinquent or that a business license has
not been obtained.

5. Proposer has not knowingly violated any provision of the campaign finance laws
of the Commonwealth of Kentucky within the past five (5) years and the award of a
contract to the Proposer will not violate any provision of the campaign finance laws
of the Commonwealth.

6. Proposer has not knowingly violated any provision of Chapter 25 of the
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Code of Ordinances, known as
"Ethics Act."

Continued on next page
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7. Proposer acknowledges that "knowingly” for purposes of this Affidavit means,
with respect to conduct or to circumstances described by a statute or ordinance
defining an offense, that a person is aware or should have been aware that his
conduct is of that nature or that the circumstance exists.

Further, Affiant sayeth naught.

A

STATE OF /JZZ«J?L‘;,

COUNTY OF %z{ﬁfﬁ/

4

The foregoing instrument was subscribed, swom to and acknowledged

before me by arnyers lionse. on this
the 20t day of 1 Yeamdrre 2014,
My Commission expires: KIM KING
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE AT LARGE, KENTUCKY
COMM, # 507857
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES MARCH 17, 2018

NOTKRY PUBL!C,(?TATE AT LARGE
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EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY AND
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION
EEO/AA POLICY AND PLAN

EEO/AA POLICY STATEMENT

It is the policy of this Company to comply and cooperate to the fullest extent with all
applicable regulations of the Equal Employment Opportunity Provisions of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, Executive Order 11246, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 793), the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of June 26, 1990 and the Vietnam Era Veterans
Readjustment Assistance Act of 1972, all as amended. This policy pertains, as far as the
responsibility of this Company is concerned, to any arrangement under which employees,
including trainees, are selected for work.

It is the policy of this Company not to discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment because of race, religion, color, age, sex, and national origin, disabilities or
Vietnam Era and Special Disabled Veterans status. This Company will take affirmative action
to assure an equal employment opportunity to all qualified persons, and that employees are
treated equally during employment without regard to their race, religion, color, age, sex,
national origin, disabilities, or Vietnam Era and Special Disabled Veteran’s status. Such action
shall include but not be limited to:

1. Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer.

2. Recruitment and recruitment advertising

3. Layoff or termination

4. Rate of pay or other forms of compensation

5. Selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship and/or on-the-job

training.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DUTIES

It is the policy of this Company that the Executive Director will maintain the duties of
an Equal Employment Opportunity Officer (EEO Officer). The name and contact information
for the Executive Director will be communicated along with this policy. The Executive
Director has responsibility for effectively administering and promoting an active program of
equal employment opportunity. The Executive Director will coordinate the EEO efforts of
superintendents, supervisors, foremen and others in the position of hiring personnel.

NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc., hereafter referred to as ‘the Company’ or ‘this Company’
will adopt this policy and plan at the first opportunity, which is the next meeting of the
Board of Directors, currently scheduled for January 26, 2015.

This Company’s Executive Director has the responsibility for effectively administering

and promoting an active program of equal employment opportunity within the Company. The
Executive Director will make recommendations, where appropriate, to correct any deficiencies
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found in the Company’s program. The Executive Director will ensure that this policy and plan
are being carried out.

EEO/AA PLAN

It is the policy of this Company that there not be any discrimination by virtue of race,
religion, color, age, sex, national origin, disabilities or Vietnam Era and Special Veterans status,
in the functions of hiring, placement, up-grading, transfer or demotion. In addition, there shall
not be any discriminatory practices in recruitment, advertising, or solicitation for employment,
rates of pay or other forms of compensation, selection for training including apprenticeship,
layoff or termination, or treatment during employment. The Company has affirmative action
obligations in the hiring of minorities, females, disabled and veteran’s applicants.

We will not use goals, timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against
any person because of their race, religion, color, age, national origin, disabilities, or Vietnam Era
and Special Disabled Veteran’s status.

This Company shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal opportunity. Our
compliance with this policy and plan shall be based upon our efforts to achieve maximum
results from our actions and we shall document our efforts fully. This Company will implement
specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as the following actions to ensure equal
employment opportunity:

1. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and
coercion at all times and in all facilities at which our employees are assigned to work. We shall
specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents and other on-site supervisory personnel
are aware of and carry out our obligations to maintain such a working environment.

2. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources,
provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community
organizations when we have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the
organization’s responses.

3. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone number of each minority
and females off-the-street applicant or female referral from a union and minority or female
referrals from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was
taken with respect to each such individual. When applicable if such individual was sent to the
Union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Company by the union or, if
referred, not employed by the Company, this shall be documented in the file with the reason
therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Company may have taken.

4. When applicable provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union
or unions with which we have a collective bargaining agreement have not referred to us a
minority person or woman sent by us, or when we have other information that the union referral
process has impeded our efforts to meet our obligations.

5. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for
the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and
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apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Company’s employment needs, especially
those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. We shall provide notice of
these programs to the sources complied under “2” above.

6. Disseminate the company EEO policy notice by providing notice to the unions and
training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting us in meeting our EEO
obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by
publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy
with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year;
and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each
location where construction work is performed.

7. Review, at least annually, the Company’s EEO policy and affirmative action
obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring,
assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these
items with onsite supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foremen, etc. prior to
the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained
identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed and
disposition of the subject matter.

8. Disseminate the Company EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in
the news media, specifically including minority and female news media and proving written
notification to and discussing the company EEO policy with other contractors and subcontractors
with whom the company does or anticipates doing business.

9. Direct our recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and
community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to female
recruitment and training organizations serving our recruitment area and our employment needs.
Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or
other training by any recruitment source, we shall send written notification to organizations such
as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection
process.

10. We will encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority
persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation
employment to minority and female youth, both on the site and in other areas of our workforce.

11. Validate all test and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so
under 41 CFP Part 60-3.

12. Conduct at least annually, an inventory and evaluation of all minority and female
personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to prepare for, through
appropriate training, etc. such opportunities.

13. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other
personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory affect by continually monitoring all personnel
and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and our obligations under these
specifications are being carried out.

14. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that
separate or single-user toilets and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure
privacy between the sexes.

15. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from
minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations
to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
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16. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors’ adherence to and performance
under the company EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.

RECORDS

This company will keep records to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the
company’s EEO policy is being carried out. Records shall at least include for each employee the
name, address, telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee
identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic,
apprentice, trainee, helper, or laborer), dates and changes in status, hours worked per week in the
indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed.

REPORTING OF COMPLAINTS

If at any time anyone feels he or she has been discriminated against because of sex, race,
religion, color, age, national origin, disabilities or Vietnam Era and Social Disabled
Veteran status, they should report this matter to the company Executive Director whose name
and contact information is communicated along with this policy.

The Executive Director will investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to
the company in connection with its contractual obligations. The Executive Director will attempt
to resolve such complaints, corrective actions to be taken and will then follow up on actions
taken and their effect. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons
other that the complainant, such corrective actions shall include such other persons. Upon
completion of each investigation, the Executive Director will inform every complainant of all of
his or her avenues of appeal.
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WORKFORCE ANALYSIS FORM

Name of Organization: NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc.

Date: 12/12/2014

Categories

Total

Latino

Black

Other

Total

Administrators

Program Directors

Kentucky Peer Specialists

Supervisors

Foremen

Technicians

Protective Service

Para-Professionals

Office/Clerical

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

Total:

15

4

10

1

W ‘ M
Prepared by: ;% » /J ,

£

Name & Title

NAMI Lexington currently has 3 full-time and 12 part-time employees. 9

employees are diagnosed with a serious mental illness and are on disability,

working part-time. Additionally, NAMI Lexington pays a small stipend to a
rotating pool of approximately 20 consumers of mental health services to

provide educational tracks and peer support services at Participation Station,

a peer-operated education and recovery center co-sponsored by NAMI

Lexington and bluegrass.org
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EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AGREEMENT

The Law

. Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (amended 1972) states that it is unlawful for an
employer to discriminate in employment because of race, color, religion, sex, age (40-70
years) or national origin.

. Executive Order No. 11246 on Nondiscrimination under Federal contract prohibits
employment discrimination by contractor and sub-contractor doing business with the Federal
Government or recipients of Federal funds. This order was later amended by Executive
Order No. 11375 to prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

. Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 states:

The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment
because of physical or mental handicap.

. Section 2012 of the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Act of 1973 requires Affirmative
Action on behalf of disabled veterans and veterans of the Vietnam Era by contractors having
Federal contracts.

. Section 206(A) of Executive Order 12086, Consolidation of Contract Compliance Functions
for Equal Employment Opportunity, states:

The Secretary of Labor may investigate the employment practices of any
Government

contractor or sub-contractor to determine whether or not the contractual provisions
specified in Section 202 of this order have been violated.

dedeh e

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government practices Equal Opportunity in recruiting, hiring
and promoting. It is the Government's intent to affirmatively provide employment opportunities for
those individuals who have previously not been allowed to enter into the mainstream of society.
Because of its importance to the local Government, this policy carries the full endorsement of the
Mayor, Commissioners, Directors and all supervisory personnel. In following this commitment to
Equal Employment Opportunity and because the Government is the benefactor of the Federal funds,
it is both against the Urban County Government policy and illegal for the Govemment to let contracts
to companies which knowingly or unknowingly practice discrimination in their employment practices.
Violation of the above mentioned ordinances may cause a contract to be canceled and the
contractors may be declared ineligible for future consideration.

Please sign this statement in the appropriate space acknowledging that you have read and
understand the provisions contained herein. Return this document as part of your application packet.

Bidders

IM/e agree to comply with the Civil Rights Laws listed above that govern employment rights of
minorities, women, Vietnam veterans, handicapped and aged persons.

%%é M NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc.
Signatlire C /f\/ Name of Business
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GENERAL PROVISIONS

Each Respondent shall comply with all Federal, State & Local regulations
concerning this type of service or good.

The Respondent agrees to comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations
governing safe and healthful working conditions, including the
Occupational Health and Safety Act of 1970, 29 U.S.C. 650 et. seq., as
amended, and KRS Chapter 338. The Respondent also agrees to notify
the LFUCG in writing immediately upon detection of any unsafe and/or
unhealthful working conditions at the job site. The Respondent agrees to
indemnify, defend and hold the LFUCG harmless from all penalties, fines
or other expenses arising out of the alleged violation of said laws.

Failure to submit ALL forms and information required in this RFP may be
grounds for disqualification.

Addenda: All addenda, if any, shall be considered in making the proposal,
and such addenda shall be made a part of this RFP. Before submitting a
proposal, it is incumbent upon each proposer to be informed as to whether
any addenda have been issued, and the failure to cover in the bid any
such addenda may result in disqualification of that proposal.

Proposal Reservations: LFUCG reserves the right to reject any or all
proposals, to award in whole or part, and to waive minor immaterial
defects in proposals. LFUCG may consider any altemative proposal that
meets its basic needs.

Liability: LFUCG is not responsible for any cost incurred by a Respondent
in the preparation of proposals.

Changes/Alterations: Respondent may change or withdraw a proposal at
any time prior to the opening; however, no oral modifications will be
allowed. Only letters, or other formal written requests for modifications or
corrections of a previously submitted proposal which is addressed in the
same manner as the proposal, and received by LFUCG prior to the
scheduled closing time for receipt of proposals, will be accepted. The
proposal, when opened, will then be comrected in accordance with such
written request(s), provided that the written request is contained in a
sealed envelope which is plainly marked “modifications of proposal”.

Clarification of Submittal: LFUCG reserves the right to obtain clarification
of any point in a bid or to obtain additional information from a Respondent.
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10.

11.

12.

Bribery Clause: By his/her signature on the bid, Respondent certifies that
no employee of histhers, any affiliate or Subcontractor, has bribed or
attempted to bribe an officer or employee of the LFUCG.

Additional Information: While not necessary, the Respondent may include
any product brochures, software documentation, sample reports, or other
documentation that may assist LFUCG in better understanding and
evaluating the Respondent’s response. Additional documentation shall not
serve as a substitute for other documentation which is required by this
RFP to be submitted with the proposal,

Ambiguity, Conflict or other Errors in RFP: If a Respondent discovers any
ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in the RFP, it shall
immediately notify LFUCG of such error in writing and request modification
or clarification of the document if allowable by the LFUCG.

Agreement to Bid Terms: In submitting this proposal, the Respondent
agrees that it has carefully examined the specifications and all provisions
relating to the work to be done attached hereto and made part of this
proposal. By acceptance of a Contract under this RFP, proposer states
that it understands the meaning, intent and requirements of the RFP and
agrees to the same. The successful Respondent shall warrant that it is
familiar with and understands all provisions herein and shall warrant that it
can comply with them. No additional compensation to Respondent shall be
authorized for services or expenses reasonably covered under these
provisions that the proposer omits from its Proposal.

Cancellation: If the services to be performed hereunder by the Respondent
are not performed in an acceptable manner to the LFUCG, the LFUCG
may cancel this contract for cause by providing written notice to the
proposer, giving at least thirty (30) days notice of the proposed
cancellation and the reasons for same. During that time period, the
proposer may seek to bring the performance of services hereunder to a
tevel that is acceptable to the LFUCG, and the LFUCG may rescind the
cancellation if such action is in its best interest.

A. Termination for Cause

(1) LFUCG may terminate a contract because of the contractor’s
failure to perform its contractual duties

(2) If a contractor is determined to be in default, LFUCG shall
notify the contractor of the determination in writing, and may
include a specified date by which the contractor shall cure the
identified deficiencies. LFUCG may proceed with termination
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13.

14.

if the contractor fails to cure the deficiencies within the
specified time.

(3) A default in performance by a contractor for which a contract
may be terminated shall include, but shall not necessarily be
limited to:

(a) Failure to perform the contract according to its terms,
conditions and specifications;

(b) Failure to make delivery within the time specified or

- according to a delivery schedule fixed by the contract;

(c) Late payment or nonpayment of bills for labor,
materials, supplies, or equipment furnished in
connection with a contract for construction services as
evidenced by mechanics’ liens filed pursuant to the
provisions of KRS Chapter 376, or letters of
indebtedness received from creditors by the
purchasing agency;

(d) Failure to diligently advance the work under a contract
for construction services;

(e) The filing of a bankruptcy petition by or against the
contractor; or

()  Actions that endanger the health, safely or welfare of
the LFUCG or its citizens.

B. At Will Termination

Notwithstanding the above provisions, the LFUCG may terminate this
contract at will in accordance with the law upon providing thirty (30) days
written notice of that intent, Payment for services or goods received prior
to termination shall be made by the LFUCG provided these goods or
services were provided in @ manner acceptable to the LFUCG. Payment
for those goods and services shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Assignment of Contract: The contractor shall not assign or subcontract any
portion of the Contract without the express written consent of LFUCG. Any
purported assignment or subcontract in violation hereof shall be void. It is
expressly acknowledged that LFUCG shall never be required or obligated
to consent to any request for assignment or subcontract; and further that
such refusal to consent can be for any or no reason, fully within the sole
discretion of LFUCG.

No Waiver: No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy,
power or privilege hereunder, nor any single or partial exercise thereof, nor
the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege shall operate as
a waiver hereof or thereof. No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any
right, remedy, power or privilege under or in respect of this Contract shall
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

affect the rights, remedies, powers or privileges of LFUCG hereunder or
shall operate as a waiver thereof.

Authority to do Business: The Respondent must be a duly organized and
authorized to do business under the laws of Kentucky. Respondent must
be in good standing and have full legal capacity to provide the services
specified under this Contract. The Respondent must have all necessary
right and fawful authority to enter into this Contract for the full term hereof
and that proper corporate or other action has been duly taken authorizing
the Respondent to enter into this Contract. The Respondent will provide
LFUCG with a copy of a corporate resolution authorizing this action and a
letter from an attomey confirming that the proposer is authorized to do
business in the State of Kentucky if requested. All proposals must be
signed by a duly authorized officer, agent or employee of the Respondent.

Governing Law: This Contract shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. In the event
of any proceedings regarding this Contract, the Parties agree that the
venue shall be the Fayette County Circuit Court or the U.S. District Court
for the Eastern District of Kentucky, Lexington Division. All parties
expressly consent to personal jurisdiction and venue in such Court for the
limited and sole purpose of proceedings relating to this Contract or any
rights or obligations arising thereunder. Service of process may be
accompiished by following the procedures prescribed by law.

Ability to Meet Obligations: Respondent affimatively states that there are
no actions, suits or proceedings of any kind pending against Respondent
or, to the knowledge of the Respondent, threatened against the
Respondent before or by any court, governmental body or agency or other
tribunal or authority which would, if adversely determined, have a
materially adverse effect on the authority or ability of Respondent to
perform its obligations under this Contract, or which question the legality,
validity or enforceability hereof or thereof.

Contractor understands and agrees that its employees, agents, or
subcontractors are not employees of LFUCG for any purpose whatsoever.
Contractor is an independent confractor at all times during the
performance of the services specified.

If any term or provision of this Contract shall be found to be iliegal or
unenforceable, the remainder of the contract shall remain in full force and
such term or provision shall be deemed stricken.

S%M A [/l?-/wL‘f“
ignatu

/—/ Date
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Hicks el Associates CPAs, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
NAMI Lexington
Lexington, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NAMT Lexington (a
nonprofit “Organization”) + Wwhich comprise the statements of financial
position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of
activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management’s Regponsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the pPreparation and fair presentation of thesea
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
Preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures salaected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of tha risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud ox
error. In making thosa risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair Presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
—-continued-
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the yesars then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

FHicks &L Associates CPAs, PLLC

March 24, 2014

190 Market Street Telephone (859) 721-1731
Lexington, KY 40507 Fax (859) 255-6198



NAMI LEXINGTON
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS 2013 2012
Cash S 31,982 s 49,109
Accounts receivable 46,760 53,760
Prepaid expense 3,853 4,172
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 82,595 107,041
TOTAL ASSETS $ 82,595 $ 107,041

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 4,748 $ 1,061
Payroll liabilities 7,655 5,384
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 12,403 6,445

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 70,192 100,596
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 5 82,595 $ 107,041

See Notes to Financial Statements.



NAMI LEXINGTON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

SUPPORT AND REVENUE 2013 2012
Donations $ 17,194 s 4,128
Fundraising revenue 43,990 45,589
Grants 133,475 113,500
Contract revenue 248,578 225,548
In-kind contributions and services 24,000 25,884
Interest 13 28
Memberships 2,256 2,721
Miscellaneous 7,522 8,017

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 477,028 425,415

EXPENSES
Advertising 14,463 14,115
Bad debt expense 750 -
Conferences 21,038 23,081
Contract 30,964 40,019
Contract labor 35,493 24,736
Equipment and maintenance 9,714 6,890
Fundraising expenses 5,600 5,995
Gifts 6,868 5,169
Insurance 2,146 1,913
Office expense 10,927 13,025
Payroll taxes and benefits 37,091 34,816
Postage 2,242 1,954
Printing 2,363 2,039
Professional fees 7,161 7,489
Rent 29,598 28,364
Supplies 12,620 18,744
Telephone 6,068 5,454
Travel 18,220 13,988
Utilities 1,921 805
Wages 252,185 229,014

TOTAL EXPENSES 507,432 477,610

NET CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (30,404) (52,195)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 100,596 152,791
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 70,192 $ 100,596

See Notes to Financial Statements.



NAMI LEXINGTON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Bad debt expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
{(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Payroll liability

NET CHANGE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET CHANGE IN CASH
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements.

2013 2012
(30,404) $ (52,195)
750 -

6,250 (15,886)
319 (2,427)
3,687 431
2,271 {1,554)
(17,127) {71, 631)
(17,127) (71,631)
49,109 120,740
31,982 $ 49,109




NAMI LEXINGTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

NAMI Lexington, herein referred to as "Organization", is a non-
profit organization created to assist families, caregivers and
individuals whose life experience includes living with a serious
and persistent mental illness. NAMI Lexington provides advocacy,
education, outreach and support through NAMI Signature programs
developed at the National level and supported by NAMI National
and NAMI KY. NAMI Lexington has also developed numerous other
significant programs to meet the needs of the community. All
NAMI programs are free to the public.

NAMI Lexington co-sponsors the only peer-operated services and
support center in Kentucky and contracts with the Department of
Behavioral Health, Developmental and Intellectual Disabilities
(DBHDID) to provide recovery-oriented training and technical
assistance to Community Mental Health Centers and State
Psychiatric Hospitals. Collaborating with numerous other
community partners allows NAMI Lexington to focus on an
integration of Mental Health Services and Primary Health Care.
Integrated health care is a system of health care in which both
mental and physical problems and disorders are treated
simultaneously. It is a system that recognizes that a mental
disorder must be treated with equal importance as a physical
disorder.

Basis of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

The Organization reports information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net assets:
unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and
permanently restricted net assets. There were no temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Tax Status

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under
Section 501 (¢)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is not a
private foundation. It is, however, subject to income taxes on
"unrelated business income”, of which management has determined
there were none for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.



NAMI LEXINGTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Organization has no
uncertain tax positions that qualify for disclosure in the
financial statements. Tax years still open under faderal and
state statute of limitations remain subject to review and change.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable

Management believes that all receivables will be collected, and
therefore, these financial statements do not include an allowance
for doubtful accounts.

In-kind Contributions and Services

The Organization receives donated use of property and specialized
services which are reported on the statement of activities. The
estimated value of these in-kind contributions and services
totaled $24,000 and $25,884 for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012.

NOTE B -~ DATE OF MANAGEMENT'S REVIEW

The Organization’s subsequent events have been evaluated by
management through March 24, 2014, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

3/18/2014

THIS CERTIFICATEIS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED, subject to the
terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

J SMITH LANIER & COMPANY/PHS

CONTACT
NAME:

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

(866)

467-8730

wo.noy (888) 443-6112

750360 P: (866) 467-8730 F:(888) 443-6112

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PO BOX 29611
CHARLOTTE NC 28229

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC#

INSURERA: Hartford Casualty Ins Co

INSURED

INSURERB: Twin City Fire Ins Co

INSURERC :

NAMI LEXINGTON, INC.

INSURERD :

498 GEORGETOWN ST STE 201
LEXINGTON KY 40508

INSURERE :

INSURERF :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE

TERMS,EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
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OTHER: s
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AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ex accident) 1,000,000
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s
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DEDI IRETENTION $ >
WORKERS COMPENSATION X PER I OTH-
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Those usual to the Insured's Operations.
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CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
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DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
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Fayette Mental Health Court Team Bios

KIM WILKIE - SHORT BIO RE: MENTAL HEALTH COURT

1980: UK Law School graduate (December 1980).

1981-1984: Attorney with Fayette County Office of the Public
Defender.

1984-2008: Boehl, Stopher & Graves, Lexington Office; Partner.

2008-2010: “Of Counsel”, Reinhardt & Associates.

2010 (Nov. 2): Elected Fayette County District Court Judge, 3rd Division.

January 2011- Present: Fayette County District Court Judge, 3rd Division.

2012 — Present: Established and currently presiding Judge, Fayette

County Heroin Drug Court.

2014 — Present: Established and currently presiding Judge, Fayette

County Mental Health Court.



DENISE REDWINE, Attorney - DPA

Denise Redwine has been a Staff Attorney with the Lexington Public Defenders’ Office of the
Department of Public Advocacy (DPA) for eleven years. She is a graduate of the University of Kentucky
(B.A.), East Tennessee State University (M.S.) and obtained her Juris Doctorate the Salmon P. Chase
College of Law at Northern Kentucky University, where she was a member of the Law Review.

Prior to joining DPA, she was employed at the Lexington-Fayette County Health Department,
Montgomery County, KY fiscal court, Bethesda Hospitals, Cincinnati, OH, and Ohio Casualty Insurance
Co. and maintained a private legal practice with a focus on employment, family, and consumer
protection law. She is a former participant in Leadership Montgomery County.

At Lexington DPA, she co-chairs the office’s representation of clients in commitment hearings at Eastern
State Hospital as well as practices in the criminal misdemeanor and felony divisions.

Heather Matics, Attorney — County Attorney’s Office, spent five years living with her family in Santa
Cruz, Bolivia, where she became fluent in Spanish. She graduated with honors from Kentucky Wesleyan
College in Owensboro, receiving a B.A. in history. Heather earned her J.D. from the University of
Louisville, Brandeis School of Law, in May 1996. Her professional career includes years spent as a
public defender and as a senior staff attorney for the Kentucky Court of Appeals. She joined the Fayette
County Attorney's Office as a general prosecutor in February, 2011.

John Landon, Attorney - DPA — Graduated Lafayette College, cum laude, and attended the
University of Kentucky Law School. Afterwards, | accepted a position in the Kentucky
Department of Public Advocacy in their Lexington Kentucky Office. | have handled
misdemeanor and felony litigation, as well as litigated for clients in civil commitment hearings.
After four years of practice in the Lexington office, | accepted a position in the Appellate Branch
of the DPA. In this position, | litigate for clients in the Kentucky Court of Appeals and the
Kentucky Supreme Court.



Taylor Johnson
1081 Merrick Dr ® Lexington, KY 40502 e
Phone: (502) 445-3565  E-Mail: tdjohnsondsp@gmail.com

Objecuve

Apply for, and obtain, the Counselor or Clinician position. Describe qualifications and experience relevant to
sclection. Lastly, interview with stall and supervisors to develop interpersonal connection and display quality of fit for
current team.

oxperience
Fayctte County Drug & Veteran’s T'reatment Courts, Case Specialist October 2013 - Present

¢ Promote, enhance, and support the restoration of lives through abstinence as well as sobriety training, mentoring,
and counseling

e Reduce recidivism through oversight, community involvement & supervision, case management, and behavior
modification

Fayctte County District Drug Court, Intern May 2013 - August 2013

¢ “Go See” style practice: Read about; Observe; Practice; Teach theory. Enabled an understanding that combines
theory to practice

e Conduct psychoeducational groups (addiction; behavior disorders; criminal & corrective thinking; etc); Individual
sessions; Assessment of cligibility and appropriateness for program, as well as phase promotion in the program

Castern State Hospital, Mental Health Technician January 2012 - September 2012

* Patient care & obscrvation: Daily supervision of 1 - 15 clients, structured day plans and treatment groups; Recovery
tasks & groups

® Assess ADLs; Work with patients on clinical treatment plans; Behavior medication and intervention strategics;
Crisis management

ILducation

Umversity of Kentucky, Masters of Rehabilitation Counscling August 2012 ~ December 2013

¢ Participated fully in the wide range of prolessional, educational, and research opportunities that UK offered.

* Benefited from our strong ties to the local, state, and national rehabilitation community; relationship with the
University of Kentucky’s Human Development Institute, Medical Center, and many other University of Kentucky
schools, colleges, departments, and programs.

Transylvania University, Bachcelor of Arts Fall 2007-May 2011

* My major course of study was Psychology with a Clinical Focus. 1 also liave minors in both Anthropology and
Philosophy. My academic interests revolve around the Human Condition as well as Social, Cultural, and Biological
influences on people’s behaviors, general outlooks as well as potential pathology.

* As astudent of Transylvania, my work included three different rescarch projects, including one lollow-up study and
one in-progress study m the Psychology field. I have experience writing grants, proposals, IRB, CRF, and
summaries.



Skills, Licensure, & Professional Certilication

e HIPAA; Ethics; Substance Use/Misuse/Abusc; CIcUs maintained

e Motvational Interviewing; Cog-Beh Therapy; Dialectical-Behavior Therapy; Moral Recognition Therapy

e Certified Alcohol & Drug Counsclor (CADC) in-progress; Licensed Professional Counsclor Associate (1LPCA) in-
progress; Certified Rehabilitation Counselor (CRC) obtained



Rebecca L. Asher, Psy.D.

3525 Branchwood Place
Lexington, KY 40503
(502) 889-0189
Rebecca.Asher@yahoo.com

Licensure
Licensed Psychologist, Kentucky Board of Examiners of Psychology
License Number: KY-1575
Expiration Date: 09/25/2015

Educational History

Spalding University, Louisville, KY
Doctor of Psychology in Clinical Psychology, January 2008

Eastern Kentucky University, Richmond, KY
Master of Science in Clinical Psychology, Deaf Emphasis, May 2003

University of Kentucky, Lexington, KY
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, May 2001

Work Experience

Eastern State Hospital, Lexington, KY

Clinical Psychologist/Forensic Evaluator: December 2010 to present

Supervisor: David Susman, Ph.D.

Duties: Carries out court ordered forensic evaluations for civil commitment, guardianship,
competency to stand trial and criminal responsibility. Provides related court testimony as an
expert witness in Fayette County and other area courts. Completed felony level competency
and criminal responsibility evaluations as an outpatient evaluator through Kentucky
Correctional Psychiatric Center from December 2010 until July 2014. Serves as an aid to other
staff psychologists at Eastern State in completing individual and/or group therapy,
psychological evaluations, participation with interdisciplinary teams, and developing individual
recovery plans as needed. Also participates in facility wide clinical and administrative
committees, develops and conducts staff training, and participates in performance improvement
functions. Supervises psychology student affiliates and interns. Provides consultation to
Fayette County Mental Health Court.

Central State Hospital, Louisville, KY



Staff Psychologist: September 2007 to November 2010

Supervisor: Russ Williams, Psy.D.

Duties: Participated as a member of a multidisciplinary treatment team on the Secure Care
Unit, an all male inpatient psychiatric unit for forensic patients, men with significant behavioral
problems, and issues of sexually acting out. As a staff psychologist duties include providing
individual and group psychotherapy, performing initial assessments of patients and conducting
additional psychological testing as needed. Facilitated development of the unit’s therapeutic
milieu through patient contact and staff consultation. Provided supervision of clinical interns
and practicum students. Participated in departmental and hospital activities as required,
including the Patient Rights Committee and TARC committee for forced medications.
Provided forensic services for patients and the legal system, including testimony in Jefferson
and other area courts as an expert witness in Mental Inquest proceedings and completion of
Competency and Criminal Responsibility evaluations.

The Center for Attention Deficit Disorders, Louisville, KY

Psychometrician: December 2008 to August 2006 & September 2007 to January 2009
Supervisor: John Lacy, Ph.D.

Duties: Conducted psychological evaluations for adolescents and children at Caritas Peace
Center, an inpatient hospital. Also conducted three-year reevaluations for students receiving
special education services through the New Albany/Floyd County Public School system, and
psychological evaluations for Wellstone Regional Hospital for inpatient adults, adolescents, and
children, administering approximately 5-10 psychological evaluations per week. Provided peer
supervision for a practicum student at this site with emphasis on improvement of assessment
skills.

Teaching Experience

Eastern Kentucky University, Corbin, KY
Part-time Instructor: January 2011 to May 2011
Supervisor: Robert Brubaker, Ph.D.
Duties: Instruct undergraduate psychology courses:
Abnormal Psychology, One section, January 2011 to May 2011

Jefferson Community and Technical College, Louisville, KY
Adjunct Instructor: January 2005 to December 2005 & August 2007 to December 2007
Supervisor: Ronald Wallace
Duties: Instructed undergraduate psychology courses including:
Introduction to Psychology, Two sections, January 2005 to May 2005
One section, August 2007 to December 2007
Developmental Psychology, One section, August 2005 to December 2005

Internship Experience

Argosy University Correctional Psychology Internship Program, Schaumburg, IL
APPIC Accredited Clinical Psychology Pre-Doctoral Internship

Pre-Doctoral Intern: August 2006 to August 2007

Site Supervisor: Amy Ray, Ph.D.



Duties: Completed 2 six month rotation at Dwight Correctional Center. This is a maximum
security female institution and reception/classification center. Duties included individual,
group therapy and psychological evaluations with female offenders. Completed intake mental
health evaluations for women entering the prison population, monthly segregation rounds,
crisis intervention, and provision of supervision to a practicum student. Also completed a six
month rotation at Stateville Correctional Center/Northern Reception Center for the State of
Illinois. This is a maximum security facility for male offenders, and the primary reception and
classification center in Illinois. Duties included individual, group therapy, and psychological
evaluations for offenders. Duties also included crisis intervention, mental health intake
evaluations for men entering the institution, and weekly rounds for offenders with severe
mental illness awaiting transfer to a psychiatric placement.

Supervised Practicum Experience

Advanced Therapy Practicum - Kentucky State Reformatory, LaGrange, KY
Advanced Therapy Practicum Student: September 2005 to July 2006

Site Supervisor: Robin Sublett, Ph.D.

University Supervisor: Gary Petiprin, Ph.D.

Duties: Provided individual therapy and psychological/neuropsychological evaluations for
male offenders housed in the Correctional Psychiatric Treatment Unit. This unit is for
individuals who have severe mental illness and is housed within a medium security male
correctional institution. Proposed the development of a program for the incarcerated male
population with severe mental illness to improve social skills, institutional adjustment, and
medication management.

Therapy Practicum - Spalding Counseling Center, Louisville, KY

Doctoral Therapy Practicum Student: September 2004 to August 2005

Site Supervisor: Thomas Bergandi, Ph.D.

University Supervisor: Brenda Nash, Ph.D.

Duties: Provided individual, couples, family therapy, and psychological evaluations to Spalding
University staff, students, and Presentation Academy High School students.

Assessment Practicum - Roederer Correctional Complex, LaGrange, KY

Doctoral Assessment Practicum Student: September 2003 to February 2004

Site Supervisor: Timothy Hurst, Psy.D.

University Supervisor: Richard Johnson, Ph.D.

Duties: Conducted psychological evaluations for incarcerated males upon entering the prison
system.

Masters Internship - The Kentucky United Methodist Home, Versailles, KY

Masters Internship Student: January 2003 to July 2003

Site Supervisor: Dewey Sanders, Ph.D.

University Supervisor: Don Beal, Ph.D.

Duties: Served as primary therapist for an emergency shelter which included conducting
weekly individual and group therapy with adolescent boys displaying a vast array of
psychological problems. Also conducted all psychological evaluations on campus for male and
female long-term residents, and served as on-call crisis person one week a month. Co-led



weekly groups for families who were at risk for their children being placed out of the home in
the Community Outreach Program.

Masters Practicum - Blackburn Correctional Complex, Lexington, KY

Masters Practicum Student: August 2002 to December 2002

Site Supervisor: Don Beal, Ph.D.

Duties: Assisted case workers with reclassification of offenders, attended psychoeducational
groups, and assisted with general casework related to the inmates.

Masters Practicum - EKU Psychology Clinic, Richmond, KY

Masters Practicum Student: January 2002 to December 2002

Site Supervisor: Don Beal, Ph.D.

Duties: Conducted individual and couples therapy with adults, completed intake evaluations for
new clients, and learning disability assessments for Eastern Kentucky University students.
Volunteer work in the community for this site included co-leading anger management and
social skills groups for elementary school children.

Masters Practicum - Kentucky School for the Deaf, Danville, KY

Masters Practicum Student: January 2002 to May 2002

Site Supervisors: Robin Santa-Teresa, MA, MS, CAGS and Robert Brubaker, Ph.D.
Duties: Conducted psychoeducational assessments for three-year re-evaluations of special
education programming, completed classroom behavioral observations and co-led a weekly
topical group for middle school girls in American Sign Language.

Undergraduate Internship - Awareness Counseling and Consulting, Georgetown, KY
Undergraduate Student: May 2000 to August 2000

Supervisors: Velva Reed, MS and Don Lynam, Ph.D.

Duties: Assisted with providing court ordered psycho-educational group therapy for
individuals convicted of DUI charges.

Research Experience

Spalding University, Louisville, KY

Defense Date: December 2007

Dissertation Chair: Thomas Bergandi, Ph.D.

Dissertation Title: “Has Clinical Training in Human Sexuality Changed Over the Past
Twenty Years? A Survey of Clinical Psychology, Counseling Psychology, and Doctor of Social
Work Programs.”

Poster Presentation: APA Conference, August 2008

Spalding University, Louisville, KY

Empirical Research: January 2004 to May 2004

Supervisor: Thomas Titus, Ph.D.

Research Title: The Effects of Boredom on the Attention Management of People with ADHD

Eastern Kentucky University, Richmond, KY
Research Assistant: May 2002 to May 2003



Supervisor: Jerry, Palmer, Ph.D.
Topic: Assisted in an empirical study that evaluated the ‘Just World Hypothesis’

Professional References

John Lacy, Ph.D.

Licensed Clinical Psychologist

The Center for Attention Deficit Disorders
Louisville, KY

Telephone: (502) 412-9197

Russell Williams, Psy.D.
Licensed Clinical Psychologist
Kentucky State Reformatory
LaGrange, KY

Telephone: (502) 222-9441

Amy Ray, Ph.D.

Correctional Program Training Director

Argosy University - Schaumburg Correctional Psychology Internship
Schaumburg, IL 60173

Telephone: (815) 727-8607 ext.7451



Jennifer Van Ort
Case Manager, Mobile Outreach Team

bluegrass.org
1351 Newtown Pike

BS in Criminal Justice

BS in Social Work including a 6 month internship with probation for adults and juveniles

3 years experience as Detention Deputy and reserve Deputy training,

8 years experience in Supported Living Services for Individuals with Developmental Disabilities
Currently in year 3 working with Adults with Serious and Persistent Mental lliness in residential and
community settings.

| look forward to combining my experience and passions to supervise and support the patrons of the
FMHC.

Jennifer

Lexington, KY 40511
(859) 519-0187
jsvanort@bluegrass.org

David Riggsby

3431 Greenlawn Dr.
Lexington, KY 40517
(859) 273-8554
david@kystars.org

Work Experience

NAMI-Lexington, (August 2011-present)

Co-Director, KYSTARS (Kentucky System Transformation, Advocacy, Recovery & Support), Provides
Leadership and direction to the program and oversight of the contract with the Kentucky Department
of Behavioral Health. Provides recovery-based training and technical assistance to the public mental
health program throughout the state. Provides support to NAMI-Lexington’s Participation Station
peer-operated recovery program. Implemented and provides support to the peer operated warmline
service. Oversees quality management indicators and data systems for the entire non-profit
organization.

Bluegrass Regional Psychiatric Service, Inc. (Eastern State Hospital), (October 2000-July 2011) retired

Director of Quality Management, Provided direct supervision of quality oversight departments
(Performance Improvement, Infection Control, Risk Management, Safety/Environment of Care, and
Utilization Review). Oversaw hospital-wide efforts to prepare for and maintain Joint Commission
accreditation. Wrote Plans of Correction and Measures of Success for any citation received.
Developed and implemented Core Measures data tracking system. Directed hospital-wide teams,
oriented all new staff, students and patients. Served on the Hospital Management Committee. Lead
hospital-wide effort to shift clinical services to a recovery-based system of care including
development and implementation of the Recovery Mall which centralized clinical services and
significantly increased the amount of active treatment each patient received. Organized and provided
oversight of all hospital data systems and critical quality indicators. Developed and implemented the
hospital’s Statlt PImd system of displaying real time indicator data for Managers in order to increase
utilization of data in decision making.



Bluegrass Regional Psychiatric Service, Inc. (Eastern State Hospital), (December 1987-September 2000)

Rehabilitation Services Administration Coordinator, Coordinated rehabilitation services at the
hospital. Coordinated the department’s performance improvement program. Provided direct care
groups, screened patients for rehabilitation services, trained new staff and provided oversight to data
for the entire department including Occupational Therapy, Therapeutic Recreation, Music Therapy,
Library Services, Physical Therapy and Chaplaincy Services. Lead departmental and interdisciplinary
performance improvement teams/initiatives.

Bluegrass Regional Psychiatric Service, Inc. (Eastern State Hospital), (September 1986-September 1987)

Patient Aide, Provided direct patient care and supervision, performed appropriate care procedures, lead
unit based groups and provided individual support to patients under the direct supervision of a
Registered Nurse.

Education

University of Kentucky - Lexington, KY, Psychology Undergraduate {August 1981-May 1986)

Paul G. Blazer Senior High School - Ashland, KY, General Studies

Achievements/Awards

Skills

National Merit Scholarship Finalist

Chessie System Merit Scholarship

Hallie C. Shouse Award (Outstanding Clinical Employee) Bluegrass Regional MH/MR Board, Inc.
Irene Nooe Award (Outstanding Long Term Employee)} Bluegrass Regional MH/MR Board, Inc.
President, Bluegrass Association for Healthcare Quality (BAHQ)

Treasurer, Kentucky Association for Healthcare Quality (KAHQ)

NAMI-Lexington “Wings” Award for Mental Illness Advocacy Efforts

Certified Mental Health First Aid Instructor (January 2012)

Has had significant training and experience with many performance measurement/improvement systems,
concepts and tools including LEAN, Six Sigma, FOCUS-PDCA, Team Building, etc.

Significant skills/experience in teaching/leading groups with both patients and employees.

Significant knowledge of the Joint Commission, Center for Medicare & Medicaid Services, Office of
Inspector General and other regulatory bodies.

Proficient in Microsoft Office Suite (Word, Excel, Access, PowerPoint, Publisher, Front Page, etc.), Adobe
Suite, various data systems such as AS400, Siemens Medical Services, experienced with website
development and creation of marketing tools (brochures, annual reports, etc.)



Kelly Gunning has a master’s degree in Community Psychology and has worked the past 12 years for
NAMI Lexington: starting as a full time volunteer, she is currently the Director of Advocacy and Public
Policy. During this tenure she has also served as an onsite advocate at Eastern State Hospital . Kelly has
worked in the mental health field since 1988. She worked for the Indian Health Service and was one of
the first non-Native persons hired by Doyon Native Corporation in Alaska where she worked for the bulk
of her early career. During the time she was completing her education, she always felt it was pertinent
to volunteer and/or simultaneously work in the field to more completely understand and experience the
plethora of issues involved in delivering wrap-around social services in a variety of community mental
health settings, including desolate and isolated Alaskan Bush communities. Kelly has been Executive
Director at NAMI Lexington since 2004 and currently serves as the Director of Advocacy and Public
Affairs for the organization. In March 2002, her 24 year old son was diagnosed with paranoid
schizophrenia. It could be said that she prepared her whole life for that diagnosis. In 2012 it was with
great honor that Kelly received “The Governor’s Dignity of Humanity Award” from the Ky Medical News
for her work in advocating for the replacement of the 200 year old Eastern State Hospital.

Resume
Connie P. Milligan, LCSW
121 Preston Ave. Lexington, KY 40502
859-806-8910 cpmilligan@live.com

Education

University of Kentucky
Masters of Social Work
Lexington, Kentucky
December 1979 with honors

Transylvania University
BA Education
Lexington, Kentucky
June 1974

Licensure

Licensed Clinical Social Worker
Kentucky License No. 378 since 1984

Transformational Coach
Certification in Core Curriculum—June 2014

Employment




Self Employed -Spectrum Transformation Services
Offering individual and group services, training and consultation

Corporate Director, Access and Crisis Services. 1996 to 2014
Director, Mental Health Crisis Network for Jails, 2003 to 2014
Bluegrass Regional Mental Health-Mental Retardation Board, Inc.
1351 Newtown Pike, Lexington, KY 40511

Director of Mental Health Crisis Network for Jails involves developing the program as a pilot in
2003; obtaining legislation in 2004 and now offering services statewide with a dedicated
funding stream of 2 million. Responsibilities include the development and implementation of
this mental health and suicide risk management program for the jails of Kentucky, including
program instrument and protocols development, networking the service infrastructure for 86
jails and 14 Mental Health Regions, training for all jail personnel along with mental health staff
across the state, staff supervision, software development, data collection and analysis.

Corporate Director of Access and Crisis Services includes managing a centralized intake
assessment, referral and scheduling center, and emergency services crisis line which provides
services for 42 counties, including the Bluegrass Region and other regions in the state under
contract, utilizing a sophisticated tailor-made software system. Responsibilities include program
development and supervision, implementation, training, consultation, data collection and
analysis and representation on relevant state-wide emergency services initiatives.

Consultant, Training and Technical Assistance
Policy Research Associates (National GAINS Center)
345 Delaware Ave,

Delmar, NY 12054

January 2007 to present

Provide consultation and training to interested states, counties and stakeholders across the
country to reduce the incidence of people with mental illness being in the corrections systems.
Training includes “Partnership Building and Collaboration” and “Cross Systems Mapping” and
“Strategic Analysis”

Program Director

Bluegrass East Comprehensive Care Center
201 Mechanic Street, Lexington, KY 40507
January 1986 to May 1996

As Director of Growth Resources Employee Assistance Program, Gratz Park Adult Outpatient
Mental Health Services and Emergency Services, | provided program development, fiscal
management, personnel supervision and outpatient psychotherapy to adults. Growth
Resources responsibilities included marketing, contract maintenance, training and consultation



to twenty four local and national contracts with business/industry. city and county
governments, and Universities.

Program Director

Bluegrass East CCC

12 East Broadway, Winchester, KY 40391
February 1982 - May 1986

As Manager and Director of four outpatient offices in Clark and Powell counties, | supervised
employees and oversaw the operation of two outpatient programs and two partial
hospitalization programs. Duties include staff supervision, program planning, fiscal
management and clinical work with children and families, outreach and community organizing.

Mental Health Specialist, 1l

Bluegrass East CCC

12 East Broadway, Winchester, KY 40391
February 1980 - May 1982

Outpatient clinician for Clark and Powell counties, Worked primarily with children, adolescents,
and families utilizing family therapy, marital therapy and play therapy techniques. Group work
included parenting education classes, adolescent groups, women’s group and an adult
psychotherapy group in addition to conducting emergency assessments.

Other Employment

Contract Therapist

Alfred B Chandler Medical Center
Outpatient Psychiatry, University of Kentucky
June 1982- December 1990

Conducted outpatient group treatment for patients with eating disorders. Groups provided
long term therapy and education to resolve the presenting symptoms of Bulimia and Anorexia.

Private Practice

Doctor’s Park, 1517 Nicholasville Road
Lexington, KY 40508

1985 - 1999

Operated a part-time private practice for outpatient psychotherapy to adults, adolescents and
families.

Professional Affiliations




e NAMI Lexington Decriminalization Committee — Co-Director, Community Group, October
2012 — Present

e Central Kentucky Homelessness and Housing Initiative — mental health representative,
November 2012 to present

e Bluegrass Re-entry Council, Founding Executive Board, Executive Director, August 2009 to
2011

e Commonwealth of Kentucky Suicide Prevention Group, Founding Executive Committee,
March 2002 to 2007, Chair 2003-2005.

e Criminal Justice/Behavioral Health Work Group, as legislatively mandated by HB 843,
Commonwealth of Kentucky — July 2002 to 2009

e Good Shepherd House, Board of Directors - 1993 to present, Vice President 2003-2006 and
1997-2000, Clinical Director 2012- present

¢ Kentucky Community Crisis Response Team, Founding Executive Board Member and
Clinical Director, 1991-1998

* Fayette County School Crisis Response Team, Founder and member 1991-1995

* Kentucky Society for Clinical Social Work, , Executive Board Member 1980-1991, and 1993-
1994, President, 1983-1985

Honors and Appointments

e NAMI Lexington — “Pioneer Award” Pioneering for the Future of Mental Health in the
Commonwealth -October 2013

e Council of State Government “Innovative Program Award” 2006 - for the Kentucky Jail
Mental Health Crisis Network

* American Association of Suicidology, Co-chair of the Jail Suicide Workgroup, 2005

¢ Kentucky Mental Health Institute “ Trail Blazer In Best Practices” Award, for Mental Health
Training for Jailers, October 2003

» Bluegrass Professional Staff Organization, President 1997-1999, Training Director 2000-
2004, Member 1996 to 2004, Training Director, 2010 to present

e Award from the Office of the Adjunct General, Commonwealth of Kentucky
For the development of the Statewide Community Crisis Response System
June 12, 1999

¢ Hallie Shouse Award, for clinical excellence and leadership 1992

e W, Van Meter Alford Award for clinical excellence 1981

e Alpha Delta Mu Honor Society

National Conference Presentations

e “Bringing the Hermetic Principals to Life” — International Transformational Presence
Coaching Summit, Vught, Netherlands, June 17, 2014

* “Collaborating Across Multiple Systems of Care — Utilizing a Suicide Risk Assessment
Tool”, American Association of Suicidology, Baltimore, MD, April 17-19 2012



¢ “Mental Health Services to Jails Using Innovative Technology and Best Practice Protocols,”
National Council’s Mental Health and Addictions 41° Annual Conference, San Diego, CA,
May 2-4, 2011 '

e “Video Mental Health Assessments and Services” — AJA’s 30" Annual Training and
Conference & Jail Expo — Cincinnati, Ohio, May 15-19, 2011 with Ray Sabbatine

e “Intake Screening: Preventing Suicide and Managing Mental Health Care in Rural Jails” —
American Jail Association Annual Conference, Sacramento, CA. May 6, 2008. with Ray
Sabbatine

¢ “Innovative Networking to Reduce In-Custody Suicide” — American Association for
Suicidology Annual Conference , Boston, MA, April 18, 2008

¢ “From the Inside — Reducing Risk and Increasing Diversion” National Gains Center
Conference, Washington, DC, March 18, 2008

¢ “Mental Health Risk Management for Rural Jails” — American Jail Association Conference,
Nashville, TN, May 22, 2007 with Ray Sabbatine

¢ “Increasing Jail Treatment and Diversion”, National Alliance for Mental lliness, Annual
Convention, Washington, DC, July 7. 2006

e “Risk Management Services for Jails: An Examination of the KY Jail Mental Health Crisis
Network”, National GAINS Center Conference, Boston, MA, April 7, 2006

¢ “In-Custody Innovation -Kentucky’s MH Program for Jails” , NASMHPD
Annual Conference, Lake Tahoe, NV, September 13, 2005

* “Innovation and Collaboration to Reduce fail Suicide” — American Association of
Suicidology Annual Conference, Broomfield, CO, April 15, 2005, presented with Ray
Sabbatine

¢ Innovative Risk Management Techniques for Jails” — National Alliance for the Mentally i,
Washington, DC, September 11, 2004, presented with Ray Sabbatine, MA

e “Innovation In Collaboration - Mental Health Risk Management & Treatment Services For
Jails” — Gaines Center National Conference, Las Vegas, NV, May 14, 2004, presented with
Rita Ruggles

¢ “From Mental Health Triage to Risk Management — A Resource for Local Jails” American
Association of Suicidology Conference, Santa Fe, NM. April 24, 2003 presented with Ray
Sabbatine, MA

e “Creative Techniques for Managing High Risk Behavior”, Crisis Intervention Conference,
Chicago IL April 2001 (presented by Kim Griswold, MA due to family emergency)

Other Relevant Training/Workshop Presentations

e “Bluegrass Suicide Risk Assessment and Intervention” — 30 trainings conducted for clinical
staff at Bluegrass MH-MR Board between Sept. and Jan. 2011.

e “Cross System Mapping” “Partnership Building and Collaboration” and “Trauma informed
Care” - GAINS Center workshops for Community Partners working with Justice Involved
People with Mental lliness— provided to communities in LA; May 2011, IL and PA 2009 CO
and TX, 2008.



“Mental Health Assessment and Suicide Intervention Training for New Jailers” — Kentucky
Jail Association Annual Conference, December 10, 2010

“Mental Health Training” (various topics)— Presented to the Kentucky Jailers Association
Annual Meetings, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2011

“Suicide Risk and Intervention” and “Working with Personality Disorders” — presented to
the Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) training for Bluegrass Region Police Departments. 2008
“Implementation Training — KY Jail Mental Health Crisis Network” — presented to staff of
83 jails and 14 mental health regions across the state from 2004 to 2006, as needed with
Ray Sabbatine

“Program Overview — KY Jail Mental Health Crisis Network” Kentucky Department of
Protection and Advocacy Conference, Frankfort KY, March 21, 2006, presented with Ray
Sabbatine

“Innovation and Collaboration to Reduce Jail Suicide” Pretrial Release Services Annual
Conference, Lexington KY June 2005 and June 2006, presented with Ray Sabbatine.
“Mental Health Intervention in Detention Facilities” District Court Judges College,
Louisville, KY June 2005

“Providing Mental Health Services to People in the Criminal Justice System”, Kentucky
Mental Health Institute, Louisville, KY September 27, 2005, presented with Ray Sabbatine
“Mental Health Training and Consultation to Jails” Mandatory training for all jail personnel
presented to 14 jail jurisdictions and the KY Jail Association Annual Meetings with Ray
Sabbatine, MA — February through November 2003, June 2004, October 2005

“Mental Health Risk Management Services for Jails” Public Defender Education
Conference, Lexington, KY June 23, 2004

Critical Incident Team Training— The Challenging Response — Suicide and Personality
Disorders” Training for Franklin County Police Critical Incident Response Team, January 28,
2003

“Behavioral Health Needs in Local Jails — A Cross Training Program” Developed the
legislatively mandated mental health curriculum and “Train the Trainers” at Kentucky Dam
Village State Park November 7-8 2002, and Lexington Fayette-Urban County Detention
Center, November 21-22, 2002

“Crisis Assessment and Intervention — Suicide Prevention” — University of KY Social Work
Department, November 11, 2002, Bluegrass Crisis Line, Dec. 12, 2002 and Crisis Stabilization
Program, Feb 19, 2003.

“Centralized Services — Making Mental Health Resources More Accessible” — The Kentucky
Mental Health Institution, Louisville, KY October 8, 2002.

“Clinical Orientation” — A full day training developed and presented to new clinical
employees of BGRMH-MR Board - 2001 to 2004

“Suicide Assessment and Prevention” — Lexington Fayette-Urban County Government
Police Department’s annual training for police sergeants 1991-1999

“Responding to Emotional Crisis” — Annual training for Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government Fire Department Paramedics — 1991-1999

“Suicide Assessment, Intervention and Risk Management” — Professional Staff Training,
Bluegrass Psychiatric Hospital , May 23, 1996



e “Suicide Assessment and Intervention — What You Do Can Make a Difference” Kentucky
Police Dispatchers Training, Eastern Kentucky Law Enforcement Program, Richmond,
Kentucky, February 18, 1996

e “Critical Incident Stress Debriefing — a training for counselors” Kentucky Community Crisis
Response Team Conference, Frankfort, KY March 1994

e “Decriminalizing the Mentally Il -The New Civil Commitment Process”

Developed mandatory Kentucky State Police and local police department training and
trained-the-trainers on implementing new Kentucky Revised Statues for civil commitment
June-September 1992

e “Adjusting to College Life” — Transylvania University Freshmen Orientation Weekend -
Program for incoming parents and students, spring and fall 1991 - 1996

¢ Training Programs for EAP services included numerous courses on Substance Abuse in the
Workplace, Stress Management, Supervisory Training, Coping with Change, and conducting
Critical Incident Stress Debriefing. 1986-2000.

e “Drug Testing in the Workplace: Changes in the Workforce” EEO Conference, Lexington
Race Relations Commission, Lexington, KY January 9, 1991.

e “Stress Management for Emergency Responders: Blueprint for the 90s” Lexington Fayette
Urban County Government Environment and Emergency Management Conference, August
22, 1990.

Publications

e Article written from interviews — Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R ; Kentucky Jail Triage
Program Adds Video Conferencing to It’s Mix; Mental Health Weekly, Volume 21,
Number 42, October 31, 2011

e Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R;, “ From Public Crisis to Innovation - The Mental Health
Crisis Network” American Jails, January/February 2008

e Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R; “Calling for Help: A Kentucky Program Makes Mental
Health Consultants Available to Jails 24/7, Behavioral Healthcare, August 2006

e Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R. “Reducing Risk and Responding to Mental Health Needs:
Kentucky’s Need System of Care”, Corrections Today, February 2006

e Gaines Center Newsletter, Program Spotlight, “Mental Health Risk Assessment and
Intervention for Jails: Kentucky’s Innovative Program” December, 2005.

e “Kentucky Develops Innovative Service Model for County Inmates”, Mental Health
Weekly, Vol. 16, Number 9, February 27, 2006

e Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R. “Innovations to Reduce Jail Suicide — A Kentucky Initiative”
Jail Suicide/Mental Health Update, Volume 12, Number 4, spring 2004,

e Sabbatine, R. and Milligan, C., “Kentucky Correctional Prevention Program Offers Keys to
Reducing Inmate Suicide”, Preventing Suicide, Volume two, Number four, September
2003.




Phill Gunning, Executive Director — NAMI Lexington

Phill began as a volunteer Board Member for NAMI Lexington in 2002, became the NAMIWalks Manager
in 2005, and the Executive Director in 2009. Phill is a trained teacher of the NAMI Signature program,
Family-to-Family, and is also a Teacher Trainer. He has served as President of the NAMI Kentucky Board
of Directors and currently serves as an at-large member of the Board of Directors of New Beginnings, an
organization providing housing and supports to consumers of mental health services.

Phill’s 30 years of entrepreneurial, small business ownership, and general management experience were
a valuable resource for NAMI Lexington as the organization transitioned from an all volunteer
organization with limited funding to an organization of paid staff with diversified funding sources and
the concomitant Federal, state, and local reporting requirements. Phill has attended numerous
trainings, workshops, and seminars on a variety of topics including:

@ Leadership, Management, and Consulting;
@ Recruiting and Hiring;
@ Networking and Team Development;
@ Project Management and Event Management;
@ Non-Profit Management;
Board Member Development;
@ Grant-writing and Fundraising;
Affordable Housing, HUD Programs and FHA/VA Guaranteed Loans;
Contract Negotiation and Contract Management;
@ Information Technology;
Quickbooks and Microsoft Office Suite;
NAMI Leadership Institute;

NAMI Family-to-Family, Train the Trainer; and

e & & 6

Numerous Tracks at NAMI National and State Annual Conferences.

Additionally, Phill has served on committees, boards, and workgroups for a variety of trade
organizations at the local, state and national levels.



NAMI Lexington Proposal
LFUCG RFP# 70-2014 - Fayette Mental Health Court

Letters of Support List

Ed Monahan — Department of Public Advocacy

Mark Birdwhistell — UK HealthCare

John Phillips — Eastern State Hospital

Chief Ronnie Bastin — Lexington Division of Police

Larry Roberts — Fayette County Attorney

David Shadd — Hope Center

Dr. Sheila Schuster — Kentucky Mental Health Coalition

Steve Shannon — KARP (Kentucky Association of Regional Programs)
Ginny Ramsey — Divine Providence, Inc. / Catholic Action Center
David Christiansen — CKHHI (Central Kentucky Housing and Homeless Initiative)
Ray Sabbatine — Retired Jailer / Criminal Justice Consulting

Connie Milligan — Retired Director of Emergency Services, bluegrass.org / Consultant

@ NnAMI|Lexington

National Alliance on Mental lllness -
namilex.org

“Promoting Recovery”




December 3, 2014

To Whom it May Concern:

UK HealthCare is pleased to offer its support for NAMI Lexington's proposal to the Lexington
Fayette Urban County Government to provide funding for a Mental Health Court. NAMI
Lexington facilitated discussions of community issues by a large group of stakeholders
beginning in October 2012. This group’s efforts resuited in the authorization by the Kentucky
Supreme Court on July 7, 2014 to implement a Mental Health Court for Fayette County. The first
session of this court was held on November 24, 2014.

The opening of the Fayette County Mental Health Court enables individuals with mental health
issues to obtain professional treatment and community supports as opposed to being sentenced
to ajail term. The Fayette Mental Heaith Court connects our community’s mental heaith
services system, cerrections system, and numerous charitable organizations that provide critical
supports and services.

The need for this court was apparent, as evidenced by the support and participation of many
diverse state and local organizations and entities including, but not limited to, Hon. Larry
Roberts and the Fayette County Attorney's Office, the Department of Pubtic Advocacy,
Lexington Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, UK HealthCare, Eastern State
Hospital, bluegrass.org, NAMI Lexington, Catholic Action Center, Central Kentucky Housing and
Homeless Coalition, Hope Center, Fayette County Detention Center, Lexington Division of
Police, Sheriff Kathy Witt and the Fayette County Sheriff's Office, Mayor Jim Gray, as well as
the many individuals who have given tirelessly of their time and efforts.

Based on all of the preliminary groundwork and dedication to this two year endeavor, NAMI
Lexington is a logical choice to administer the funding, evaluation and reporting for the Fayette
Mental Health Court.

Vice President for Administration and External Affairs

Nfiice of e Fxecinive Vice Prosident for Health Affairs

University of Kentucky » 317 Wethington Building « 900 South Limestone © Lexington, Kentucky 40536-0200
Phone: 859-323-5126 « Fax: 859-323-1918 « ukheaithcare.uky.edu



Eastern State Hospital

Managed by UK HealthCare

December 4, 2014

To Whom It May Concern:

Eastern State Hospital is pleased to offer its support for NAMI Lexington’s proposal o the
Lexington Fayette Urban County Government to provide funding for a Mental Health Court.
NAMI Lexington facilitated discussions of community issues by a large group of
stakeholders beginning in October 2012. This group’s efforts resulted in the authorization
by the Kentucky Supreme Court on July 7, 2014 to implement a Mental Health Court for
Fayette County. The first session of this court was held on November 24, 2014.

The opening of the Fayette County Mental Health Court enables individuals with mental
health issues to obtain professional treatment and community supports as opposed to
being sentenced to a jail term. The Fayette Mental Health Court connects our community’s
mental health services system, corrections system, and numerous charitable organizations
that provide critical supports and services.

The need for this court was apparent, as evidenced by the support and participation of
many diverse state and local organizations and entities including, but not limited to, Hon.
Larry Roberts and the Fayette County Attorney’s Office, the Department of Public
Advocacy, Lexington Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, UK HealthCare,
Eastern State Hospital, bluegrass.org, NAM! Lexington, Catholic Action Center, Central
Kentucky Housing and Homeless Coalition, Hope Center, Fayette County Detention
Center, Lexington Division of Police, Sheriff Kathy Witt and the Fayette County Sheriff's
Office, Mayor Jim Gray, as well as the many individuals who have given tirelessly of their
time and efforts.

Based on all of the preliminary groundwork and dedication to this two year endeavor, NAMI

Lexington is a logical choice to administer the funding, evaluation and reporting for the
Fayette Mental Health Court.

Sincerely,
John W, Phillips

Chief Administrative Officer
Eastern State Hospital

Eastern State Hospital « 1350 Bull Lea Road - Lexington KY 40511
Phone: 859 246-8000 » ukhealthcare.uky.edu/ESH/



LARRY S. ROBERTS
FayEr1E COUNTY ATTORNEY

M. LEE TURPIN 110 W. VINE STREET ROBYN H. SHIER
FRST ASSISTANT LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40507 DIRECTOR, CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT
(859) 2544541

December 5, 2014

Dear Urban County Councilmembers,

As the elected Fayette County Attorney, { am writing to express my office’s support for
NAM! Lexington's proposal to administer the funds allocated to the Fayette County Mental
Health Court by the Lexington Fayette Urban County Government. NAMI Lexington has been a
vital partner in the two-plus year effort to establish this court. In October 2012, NAMI Lexington
assembled a group of community organizations to discuss the difficulties faced by criminal
defendants with mental health needs. As a result of this group's efforts, the Fayette County
Mental Heaith Court was authorized by the Kentucky Supreme Court on July 7, 2014.

The Court offers accused criminal defendants an alternative to jail sentences by
providing eligible defendants access to mental health treatment and community supports. It
connects our community’s mental health services system, corrections system, and numerous
charitable organizations that provide critical supports and services.

The need for an alternative to incarcerating the mentally ill was recognized by diverse
state and local organizations, including NAMI Lexington, the County Attorney’s Office, the
Department of Public Advocacy, Lexington Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention,
UK HealthCare, Eastern State Hospital, bluegrass.org, Catholic Action Center, Central Kentucky
Housing and Homeless Coalition, Hope Center, Fayette County Detention Center, Lexington
Division of Police, Sheriff Kathy Witt, Mayor Jim Gray, and many other individuals who have
given tirelessly of their time and efforts.

When Chief Justice John Minton signed the regulations autharizing the Fayette Gounty
Mental Heaith Court, we had no funding to hire a coordinator or to provide the necessary
treatment to our participants. NAMI Lexington stepped into that breach, firmly resolved to make
this court a reality. Our first court session was held on November 24, 2014. In addition to
actively participating in every planning meeting and court event scheduled, NAMI Lexington has
volunteered individuals to serve as temporary coordinators until we can hire a permanent staff
member.

Due to its demonstrated commitment and dedication to this endeavor, NAMI Lexington is
a logical choice to administer the funding, evaluation and reporting for the Fayeite County
Mental Health Court.

Sincerely,

g Ll

Fayette County Aftorney



CENTER

Hope Center
Emergency Sheiter
(859) 252:788
Don and Cathy
Jacebs House

Jacobs Hope
Cafeteria

(859) 5432222

George Privett
Recovery Center

(859) 225-4673

Ball-Quantrell jones
Center for Women
{859) 252-2002

One Parent
Scholar House
{859} 252-4828

Hope Center
Recovery Program
Lexington-Fayette
County Detention
Center

{859) 4252700
ext. 7372 - Women
ext. 7389 - Men

Hill Rise Place
(859} 255-8077

Barbara Hardwick
Rouse House
(859} 252-2002
SHELTER

FOOD
CLOTHING
RECOVERY
EMPLOYMENT
HOUSING
HEALTH
MENTAL HEALTH
SOCIAL SERVICE
OQUTREACH

CHILD
DEVELOPMENT

EDUCATIONAL
SUPPORT

December 3, 2014

Hope Center is pleased to offer its support for NAM/ Lexington’s proposal to
the Lexington Fayette Urban County Government to provide funding for a
Mental Health Court. NAMI Lexington facilitated discussions of community
issues by a large group of stakeholders beginning in October 2012. This
group’s efforts resulted in the authorization by the Kentucky Supreme Court
on July 7, 2014 to implement a Mental Health Court for Fayette County. The
first session of this court was held on November 24, 2014.

The opening of the Fayette County Mental Health Court enables individuals
with mental health issues to obtain professional treatment and community
supports as opposed to being sentenced to a jail term. The Fayette Mental
Heaith Court connects our community’s mental health services system,

corrections system, and numerous charitable organizations that provide
gritical supports and services.

The need for this court was apparent, as evidenced by the support and
participation of many diverse state and local organizations and entities
including, but not limited to, Hon. Larry Roberts and the Fa yette County
Attorney’s Office, the Department of Public Advocacy, Lexington Office of
Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, UK HealthCare, Eastern State
Hospital, bluegrass.org, NAMI Lexington, Catholic Action Center, Central
Kentucky Housing and Homeless Coalition, Hope Center, Fayette County
Detention Center, Lexington Division of Police, Sheriff Kathy Witt and the
Fayette County Sheriff's Office, Mayor Jim Gray, as well as the many
individuals who have given lirefessly of their time and efforts.

Based on all of the preliminary groundwork and dedication to this two year
endeavor, NAMI Lexington is a logical choice to administer the funding,
evaluation and reporting for the Fayette Mental Health Court.

Sincerely,
/ V.
n | )
David Shadd, MS, LPP
Director of Programs
Hope Center



KENTUCKY MENTAL HEALTH COALITION

Pa 2

December 8, 2014

To Whom It May Concern:

On behalf of the 80 member organizations of the Kentucky Mental Health Coalition, I am
pleased to write this letter of strong support for the funding proposal submitted by NAMI
Lexington regarding the Mental Health Court in Fayette County.

I was the moderator of the first of many community-wide discussions among stakeholders about
the problems of individuals with serious mental illness in Fayette County being incarcerated,
rather than receiving needed treatment. From that beginning discussion during Mental Iliness
Awareness Week in October of 2012, NAMI Lexington has led the way in bringing
organizations and individuals to the table, keeping the focus on the needs of those suffering from
serious mental illness, and looking for partnerships which would result in real progress.

It was truly an acknowledgement of the community’s persistence and involvement and NAMI
Lexington’s leadership when the Kentucky Supreme Court authorized in July of 2014 the
establishment of a Mental Health Court in Fayette County. 1was able to attend the ribbon-
cutting in October of this year and know how exciting it was that the first session of the Mental
Health Court was held on November 24, 2014!

We have excellent experience here in Jefferson County and elsewhere in the Commonwealth
with the success of the Mental Health Court model. This approach funnels those with significant
behavioral health issues to treatment and supports in the community, rather than to incarceration.
The Fayette County Mental Health Court — Jike those in other locations — represents a network
and partnership of the community’s mental health agencies, the corrections and judicial systems
and community agencies that provide those supports and services like housing that are critical to
the individual’s success in following a treatment path rather than one of jail time.

NAMI Lexington has a storied history —and a well-deserved reputation — as an small, nonprofit
advocacy organization which is able to identify a need, bring together all of the affected parties,
work through any differences in approach or philosophy to gain consensus, and then persistently
“heat the drum” to get the necessary approval, authorization, funding, etc. to make change
happen! In this case, they demonstrated the ability to bring together multiple community and
state organizations and entities to lay out the need, identify the Mental Health Court as part of the
solution, and then to keep the coalition partnerships working together to realize the goal.

ADVOCACY ACTION NETWORK
120 SEARS AVENUE, SUITE 212 LOUISVILLE, KY 40207
PHONE: {(502) 894-0222 TOLLFREE (877)8940222 Fax: (502) 8904-0635
WEBSITE. AW, 20y OCACYATTIO ‘



NAMI Lexington has been the catalyst and the lynch-pin of Fayette County’s Mental Health
Court and is recognized as such by their partners. They are, therefore, in an excellent position to
be designated as the agency which will have the responsibility of administering the funding,
conducting the evaluation of the court and making the reports and updates of the court’s
activities.

I wholeheartedly endorse NAMI Lexington’s proposal. The Fayette County Mental Health
Court, the organizations and agencies involved and the individuals with serious mental illness

adjudicated by the court will be well-served by NAMI Lexington having that role!

Thank you for the opportunity to express the support of the KY Mental Health Coalition. Please
do not hesitate to contact me, should you need further information.

Sincerely,

Sheila A. Schuster, Ph.D.
Executive Director

ADVOCACY ACTION NETWORK
120 SEARS AVENUE, SUITE 212 LOUISVILLE, KY 40207
PHONE: (502)894-0222 TOLL-FREE (877) 8940222 Fax: (502) 8940635
WERBSITE. “» v A DAY Al T Shd e



152 West Zandale Drive
Suite 201

Lexington, KY 40503
Phone: 859-272-6700
Fax: 859-272-5200

December 4, 2014
To Whom it May Concern:

The Kentucky Association of Regional Programs, Inc. represents 11 of the 14 Community Mental
Health Centers {CMHCs) throughout the Commonwealth The CMHCs serve and support over

180,000 Kentuckians each year.

KARP is pleased to offer its support for NAMI Lexington’s proposal to the Lexington Fayette Urban
County Government to provide funding for a Mental Health Court. NAMI Lexington facilitated
discussions of community issues by a large group of stakeholders beginning in October 2012. This
group’s efforts resuited in the authorization by the Kentucky Supreme Court on July 7, 2014 to
implement a Mental Health Court for Fayette County. The first session of this court was held on
November 24, 2014. '

The opening of the Fayette County Mental Health Court enables individuals with mental heaith issues
to obtain professional treatment and community supports as opposed to being sentenced to a jail
term. The Fayette Mental Health Court connects aur community’s mental health services system,
corrections system, and numerous charitable organizations that provide critical supports and
services.

The need for this court was apparent, as evidenced by the support and participation of many diverse
state and local organizations and entities including, but not limited to, Hon. Larry Roberts and the
Fayette County Attorney’s Office, the Department of Public Advocacy, Lexington Office of
Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, UK HealthCare, Eastern State Hospital, bluegrass org,
NAMI Lexington, Catholic Action Center, Central Kentucky Housing and Homeless Coalition, Hope
Center, Fayette County Detention Center, Lexington Division of Police, Sheriff Kathy Witt and the
Fayette County Sheriff's Office, Mayor Jim Gray, as well as the many individuals who have given
tirelessly of their time and efforts

Based on all of the preliminary groundwork and dedication to this two year endeavor, NAMI
Lexington Is a logical choice to administer the funding, evaluation and reporting for the Fayette
Mental Health Court.

Please do not hesitate to contact our office at 859-272-6700 if you have any guestions.

Sincerely,

0L L5

Steve Shanno
Executive Director

Kentucky Association of Regional Programs, Inc.




DIVINE PROVIDENCE, INC
Catholic Action Center
614 E 7TH STREET

LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40505
(859) 514-7210
email: caclex2000@gmail.com
website: www.godsnet.info

12/9/14

To: LFUCG Office of Homeless Prevention and Intervention
From: Ginny Ramsey, Director Divine Providence, Inc.
RE: Mental Health Court Letter of Support: NAMI Lexington

Divine Providence, Inc is delighted to support the efforts of NAMI Lexington’s
proposal for funding to manage the Fayette County Mental Health Court. For the
past 2 years community partners have been working with NAMI Lexington to
develop this outreach that will yield great impact on our homeless population who
suffer with mental illness and rotate between the streets and the jail.

We will provide at no cost to the program, Community Mentors trained to work with
those who are suffering from mental illness and homelessness as they are working
with the Mental Health Court and service providers. This model has been successful
in many areas of the country, and based on the Savannah, GA model has been
proven as a best practice by surrounding the clients with professional services, peer
mentors and community mentors who will guide and connect the individuals who
need intense support to live in safety and dignity. We look forward to the full
implementation of the Mental Health Courtin Fayette County and appreciate the
efforts of all involved.

If you have any questions, feel free to contact me at the above email or phone.



ACKHHI

e/ r(/aiKemuck y Housing
and Homeless initialie

Dec 4, 2014

Phill Gunning
Executive Director
NAMI Lexington
ADDRESS
Lexington, KY ZIP

Dear Phill,

The Central Kentucky Housing and Homeless Initiative is delighted to support NAMI
Lexington’s proposal to the Lexington Fayette Urban County Government for funding for
the recently opened Mental Health Court. NAMI Lexington has been involved in
establishing the Mental Health Court from the very beginning, facilitating discussions on
community issues through a comprehensive group of stakeholders beginning in October
oo12. This collaboration ultimately resulted in the authorization by the Kentucky
Supreme Court on July 7, 2014 to implement a Mental Health Court for Fayette County.
The first session of this court was held on November 24, 2014.

The opening of the Fayette County Mental H ealth Court enables individuals with mental
health issues to obtain professional treatment and community supports rather than
being sentenced to jail terms. The Fayette Mental Health Court connects our
community’s mental health services system, corrections system, and numerous
charitable organizations that provide critical supports and services.

The need for this court was apparent, as evidenced by the support and participation of
many diverse state and local organizations and entities including, but not limited to,
Hon. Larry Roberts and the Fayette County Attorney’s Office, the Department of Public
Advocacy, Lexington Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, UK
HealthCare, Eastern State Hospital, bluegrass.org, NAMI Lexington, Catholic Action
Center, Central Kentucky Housing and Homeless Initiative, Hope Center, Fayette County
Detention Center, Lexington Division of Police, Sheriff Kathy Witt and the Fayette
County Sheriff's Office, Mayor Jim Gray, as well as the many individuals who have given
tirelessly of their time and efforts.

Based on all of the preliminary groundwork and dedication to this two year endeavor,
NAMI Lexington is the best and most qualified agency to administer the funding,
evaluation and reporting for the Fayette Mental Health Court.

Sincerely,

s> <

David Christiansen, MSW
Executive Director

130 W. New Circle Road, Suite 110 P
Lexington, KY 40505 1
(859) 281-9402




SABBATINE & ASSOCIATES
237 Bonniemere Rd

Shelbyville, KY 40065

Ray Sabbatine Sapbatine@mac.com

Criminal Justice Consulting Cell 859- 806-0935

Ray Sabbatine is pleased to offer its support for NAMI Lexington’s proposal to the Lexington
Fayette Urban County Government to provide funding for a Mental Health Court. NAMI
Lexington facilitated discussions of community issues by a large group of stakeholders
beginning in October 2012. This group’s efforts resulted in the authorization by the Kentucky
Supreme Court on July 7, 2014 to implement a Mental Health Court for Fayette County. The first
session of this court was held on November 24, 2014,

The opening of the Fayette County Mental Health Court enables individuals with mental health
issues to obtain professional treatment and community supports as opposed to being sentenced
to a jail term. The Fayette Mental Health Court connects our community’s mental health
services system, corrections system, and numerous charitable organizations that provide critical

supports and services.

The need for this court was apparent, as evidenced by the support and participation of many
diverse state and local organizations and entities including, but not limited to, Hon. Larry
Roberts and the Fayette County Attomey’s Office, the Department of Public Advocacy,
Lexington Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention, UK HealthCare, Eastern State
Hospital, bluegrass.org, NAMI Lexington, Catholic Action Center, Central Kentucky Housing and
Homeless Coalition, Hope Center, Fayette County Detention Center, Lexington Division of
Police, Sheriff Kathy Witt and the Fayette County Sheriff's Office, Mayor Jim Gray, as welt as
the many individuals who have given tirelessly of their time and efforts.

Based on all of the preliminary groundwork and dedication to this two year endeavor, NAMI
Lexington is a logical choice to administer the funding, evaluation and reporting for the Fayette
Mental Health Court.
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“ % Connie P. Milligan, LCSW
121 Preston Ave. Lexington, KY 40502
859-806-8910 cpmilligan@live.com

Charlie Lanter

Director, Office of Homelessness Prevention and Intervention
LFUCG Mayor’s Office

200 East Main Street

Lexington, KY 40507

Dear Mr. Lanter,

It is my pleasure to write a letter of endorsement for NAMI Lexington to be the grant holder for
the Fayette County Mental Health Court. | have been involved in the development of the
Mental Health Court for the past two years as a committee member and co-chair of the NAMI
Lexington Decriminalization Committee. | was one of many community stake holders involved
in its development, representing Bluegrass.org as the Corporate Director of Access and Crisis
Service, having just retired November 1, 2014 after a 34 year career in mental health services.

The Fayette County Mental Health Court was created in response to the difficulty people
experience rotating from hospitalization, the Jail, and homelessness on the street or in shelters,
with limited involvement in mental health treatment. The lack of treatment is at the heart of
the problem. This cycle of difficulty has been documented in communities across the country.
One of the solutions has been the development of Mental Health Courts which uses a Judge’s
“black robe effect” to court order people, with a track record of problems related to their
mental illness, into treatment where they can be monitored and helped into needed mental
health services, housing and other social supports. It is an approach that has a documented
track record of success.

NAMI Lexington presented the idea of a Mental Health Court to a group of community stake
holders at a community forum during Mental Health Week in October 2012. A documentary of
the one of the successful Mental Health Court programs in Florida was shown and an
assembled panel of experts was asked to comment on it. | was one of the panel members and
strongly endorsed its concept, having also made a recommendation for such a program to
Mayor Gray’s Commission on Homelessness.

NAMI Lexington followed up the community forum by assembling up to 50 local and state
service providers, Judges, court personnel, potice, jail and mental health and other community



stakeholders to discuss solutions to this problem. in the monthly meeting that followed, the
development of a Mental Health Court was one of the top agenda items. NAMI Lexington
brought all needed resource people and information into the planning and development
process. They’ve had the vision and the track record of success to make this program workable

in our community.

NAMI Lexington comes into this role with a tremendous amount of experience which speaks to
their capacity to be the grant holder for the Fayette County Mental Health Court. They have
taken on many of the communities challenges in the past and have brought about tremendous
needed social changes. They organized community and state agencies, the Legislature and the
Governor to support the building of a new Eastern State Hospital. They developed and run a
recovery mall of recovery services for the hospital, which is the backbone of treatment services.
They have developed and trained peer support advocates, which will be used in the Mental
Health Court. They have an ongoing family to family peer training program to help loved ones
understand mental illness. And most importantly, they have developed a social club drop-in
center at Participation Station which gives consumers active involvement in recovery oriented

services.

These types of services, organized and run by NAMI Lexington, are at the heart of what is
needed for the people serviced in the Fayette County Mental Health Court. While they are also
accustomned to collaborating with traditional outpatient services providers like Bluegrass.org for
individual therapy, medication, and case management, and would do so with the Mental Health
Court, their focus is primarily in helping consumers be more socially responsible and
productive. They have the big picture of what consumers need and have the ability to meet
those needs. It is for these reasons that | strongly endorse NAMI Lexington as the grant holder
to operate the Fayette County Mental Health Court.

| am happy to answer any additional questions you may have.

Respectfully yours,

Connie P. Milligan, LCSW



NAMI Lexington Proposal
LFUCG RFP# 70-2014 - Fayette Mental Health Court

Additional Documents List

1) Bylaws
2) Policies and Procedures
3) Directory - 2015 Board of Directors and Staff

4) Brochures and Flyers — (back pocket)

@ NAMI|Lexington

National Alliance on Mental lllness -
namilex.org

“Promoting Recovery”



Bylaws of NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc.
Revised October 31, 2012

ARTICLE 1 - NAME

The name of the Corporation shall be NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc. and it is sometimes

referred to in these Bylaws as the Corporation.

ARTICLE Il - PURPOSES

Education: to inform the general public, legisiators, mental health professionals, and those
personally affected by neurobiological disorders, of their prevalence and treatments as well
as of new research and developments in the field.

Support:  to provide opportunities for family members and consumers to share their
experiences and to receive mutual support from others who share an understanding of
neurobiological brain disorders.

Advocacy. to appeal for the rights of persons with neurobiological disorders and their
families as well as to advocate for appropriate governmental services for consumers and
their families.

Cooperation: to cooperate with other local and national organizations to offer educational
programs, to foster research on the causes and treatment of neurobiological brain disorders,
and to determine present and future needs for services in the Lexington area.

General: to have all purposes for which a corporation may be formed under the non-stock,
non-profit corporation law of the State of Kentucky.

ARTICLE [Il - BASIC POLICIES

The following are the basic policies of the Corporation:

=N

The Corporation shall be noncommercial, nonsectarian, and nonpartisan.

The name of the Corporation or the names of any members in their official capacity shall not
be used in connection with any partisan interest or for any purpose not appropriately related
to the promotion of the objectives of the Corporation and limited by the provisions of the
Articles of Incorporation.

The Corporation shall cooperate with other organizations and agencies concerned with
persons with neurobiological brain disorders and their families.

ARTICLE IV - MEMBERSHIP AND DUES

. Any individual who subscribes to the purposes and basic policies of the Corporation may

become a member of the Corporation subject only to compliance with the provisions of the
Bylaws. Membership in the Corporation shall be available without regard to race, disability,
creed, sex, religion, age, or national origin.

. The Corporation shall admit persons to membership at any time and their membership will

expire in accordance with NAMI Lexington Policies and Procedures.

Only members in good standing of the Corporation shall be eligible to participate in the
business meetings, or to serve in any of its elective or appointive positions.

Each member of the Corporation shall pay such annual dues as are prescribed by the Board
of Directors.
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Bylaws of NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc.
Revised October 31, 2012

ARTICLE V - MEETINGS

1. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held as determined by resolution of the
Board of Directors.

2. The president of the Board may convene a special meeting of the voting members. A
minimum of 5 members of the Board of Directors may require the president, in writing, to
convene a special meeting of the voting members with a specified issue or issues, appropriate
for vote by the membership, to be on the agenda. The president must convene the requested
special meeting of the membership within 14 days of the receipt of the written request.

3. In all meetings of the Board of Directors, fifty percent (50%) of the members shall constitute
a quorum. A majority of those present at any Board meeting shall have power to act in all
matters, except as specifically provided to the contrary elsewhere in these bylaws. Meetings of
the Board shall be open except when the Board votes to meet in executive session. An
affirmative vote of the majority of those present and voting shall be required for the transaction
of business in any meeting of the Corporation.

4. The annual meeting of the Corporation shall be in November or at such other time directed
by the Board. Notice of the annual meeting shall be given in writing, e-mailed to members
and/or posted on the NAMI Lexington website at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the
meeting. Members may continue to receive written notice by request. Those members in
attendance shall constitute a quorum for the annual meeting. In no case may a proxy act or
vote on behalf of a member in meetings of this organization.

ARTICLE VI - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. At each Board Meeting, a majority vote of the Board of Directors may change the number of
directors from seven (7) as set forth as the initial Board of Directors in the Articles of
Incorporation but as limited by the provisions thereof (not less than three (3) nor more than
twenty (20).

2. The Board of Directors shall consist of the past president, president, vice president,
secretary, and treasurer and up to fifteen (15) members-at-large from the Corporation, as set
forth in the Articles of Incorporation.

(a) The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall select the nominating committee. The
nominating committee shall consist of four (4) members: one (1) shall be an officer, one (1) a
Board member, one (1) a consumer, and (1) shall be a member of the Corporation who is not
serving as a Director. The committee members shall elect the chairperson of the nominating
committee.

(b) The nominating committee shall select from the membership of the Corporation persons
to serve on the board of Directors in accordance with the number of directors last set by the
Articles of Incorporation or the membership at the annual meeting. The committee must obtain
the approval of each candidate before his’lher name may be presented.

(c) The recommended slate of nominees shall be circulated to the members of the
Corporation in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the election. Nominations may be
received from the general membership. The persons receiving the highest number of votes by
the membership shall serve as Directors for the ensuing two years.
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Bylaws of NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc.
Revised October 31, 2012

(d) The term of office for each director shall be a maximum of two years. No director may
serve for more than three consecutive terms. A director who replaces another director mid-term
may serve for two additional terms. The Nominating Committee, the Board, and the Members
may not select or elect a person for nomination, appointment, or election to the Board for a term
that begins less than two years following their departure from the Board after serving three
terms. The sole exception is the past president, who may serve in that capacity despite previous
service during three consecutive terms.

(e) In case of a resignation of a person who is an at large member of the board of Directors,
the vacancy can be filled by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at the first regular meeting
of the Board with notice being given 30 days in advance.

3. RESIGNATION, TERMINATION and ABSENCES.

(@) Resignation. Any officer or director may resign by tendering a written resignation.
An officer or director who discovers, finds themselves, or is placed in a position with the
actuality of a conflict of interest, shall immediately resign from the Board or office. An officer or
director who is unable to fulfill their duties as required for effective Board functioning shall
resign. Resignations shall be effective immediately upon receipt by the Board.

(b) Absences. Any officer or director who is absent from three consecutive meetings
shall be deemed to have resigned as of the date of the third missed meeting.

(c) Terminations. All directors are subject to removal for cause. A vote of the majority of
directors may remove any officer or director whenever the termination would serve the best
interest of NAMI Lexington. The president, or any three directors, shall raise the question of
terminating the membership of any officer or director arguably meeting the conditions of
subsection a. above who has not resigned.

ARTICLE VII - OFFICERS AND THEIR ELECTION
1. OFFICERS:

(a) The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a president, a president elect, a vice
president, a recording secretary, a corresponding secretary and a treasurer.

(b) Officers shall be elected by ballot biannually in the month of November. However, if
there is but one nominee for any office, it shall be in order to move that the recording secretary
cast the elective ballot of the Corporation for the nominee.

(c) Officers shall assume their official duties the following January after being elected
and shall serve for a term of two (2) years until the election and qualification of their successors.

(d) Each officer shall serve a two-year term. Terms shall begin upon completion of
elections. An individual may not serve consecutive terms in the same position. An individual
may serve consecutive terms in different officer positions.

2.  ELECTION:
(a) There shall be a nomination committee composed of such members as the Board of

directors shall determine and the nomination committee shall select from the membership of the
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Bylaws of NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc.
Revised October 31, 2012

Corporation the nominees for officers of the Corporation and present the nominees so selected
to the membership.

(b) Officer nominations are permitted from the floor provided the candidate is a member
in good standing.

(c) Only those persons who have signified their consent to serve if elected shall be
nominated.

3. VACANCY:

A vacancy is filled by a board member elected by a majority vote of the remaining board

members (30 day notice of such election having been given) for the unexpired term. In case a

vacancy occurs in the office of the president, the vice president shall assume this office.
ARTICLE VIl - DUTIES OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE and OFFICERS

1. The Executive Committee shall:

(a) transact necessary business in the intervals between meetings of the Corporation
and such other business as may be referred to it by the Corporation.

(b) create standing committees.
(c) approve the works of the standing committees.
(d) present a report at the regular meetings of the Corporation.

(e) appoint an auditor or an auditing committee in January to audit the treasurer's
accounts of the previous year.

(f) perform the duties prescribed in the parliamentary authority in addition to those
outlined in these Bylaws and those assigned from time to time.

(g) deliver to their successors all official material no later than ten (10) days following
the election of their successors.

2. Duties of the elected officers:

(a) The president shall preside at all meetings of the Corporation and of the Board of
Directors at which he may be present; shall perform such other duties as may be described in
these Bylaws or assigned to him by the Board of Directors; and shall coordinate the work of
the officers and committees of the Corporation in order that the purposes may be promoted.

(b) The vice president shall act as aide to the president and shall perform the duties of
the president in the absence of the president and assist the president with all duties.

(c) The secretary or designee shall record the minutes of all of the Corporation and of
the board of directors and shall perform such other duties as may be delegated to him. The
recording secretary shall keep a record of any and all votes at the Board of Directors meetings.
The secretary may conduct the official correspondence as necessary.
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Bylaws of NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc.
Revised October 31, 2012

(d) The treasurer shall have supervision and custody of all monies, securities and other
valuable properties of the corporation and shall cause to be kept full and accurate accounts of
the receipts and disbursement of the corporation in books belonging to it. The treasurer shall
cause all monies and other valuable effects to be deposited in the name and to the credit of the
corporation in such accounts and in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of
Directors. The Treasurer shall disburse and supervise the disbursement of funds of the
corporation in accordance with authority of the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers
therefore. The Treasurer shall render to the President and Directors, whenever required, a
written detailed account of his transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the
corporation, including a statement of all its assets, liabilities, and financial transactions. The
Treasurer shall further perform such other duties as the President or Board of Directors direct
and such other duties as usually pertain to the office of treasurer. The Treasurer may, with the
consent of the Board of Directors, assign such duties to the staff of the corporation. The
Treasurer shall be relieved of all of the responsibility for any securities or monies or the
disbursement thereof committed by the directors to the custody of any other person or
corporation, or the supervision of which is delegated by the Board of Directors to any other
officer, agent or employee, and the Treasurer shall not be responsible for any action of any
officer, agent or employee of the corporation.

ARTICLE IX - EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

An Executive Director may be employed by the Board of Directors and shall have general
direction of and supervision over the staff and day-to-day affairs of the corporation. The
Executive Director shall exercise such authority and perform such duties as the Board of
Directors may from time to time assign to the Executive Director.

ARTICLE X - SPECIAL COMMITTEES

1. The Board of Directors may, at any time, form standing or ad-hoc committees and appoint
their members.

2. The president shall be a member ex-officio of all committees except the nominating
committee.

ARTICLE Xl - DIVERSITY, INCLUSION & NON-DISCRIMINATION

This Article is intended to assure that NAMI Lexington actively strives to be inclusive of every
sector of our demographics and makes no distinction between people who have a mental illness
and other members.

1. NAMI Lexington shall actively recruit, engage and serve members from every race,
culture, ethnicity, age, religion, socio-economic status, sexual orientation, gender, and disability
and shall not discriminate against any person or group in the requirements for membership,
provision of service or support, or in its policies or actions.

2. In keeping with NAMI's values regarding nondiscrimination and with applicable federal
law, NAMI Lexington shall include in bylaws, operating policies and procedures, and other
relevant policy documents, explicit statements that require the organization to embrace the
broadest possible definition of inclusion and nondiscrimination.

3. NAMI Lexington shall collect a baseline of members’ voluntarily-supplied demographic
information as identified and requested by the National Board of Directors. Additional
membership information may be collected by State Organizations and Affiliates.
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Bylaws of NAMI Lexington (KY), Inc.
Revised October 31, 2012

4. Whenever there is a demand and the interests of members can best be served by
support through groups sharing some affinity, including but not limited to lived experience or
primary language, and provided the necessary infrastructure and funding can be developed,
NAMI Lexington will offer multiple support groups beyond our baseline family and/or consumer
groups.

5. NAMI Lexington membership and leadership will aspire to reflect the demographic
composition of our respective community. NAMI Lexington will use the most recent national
census data as the standard for local demographics and for measuring success in reaching this
aspiration.

ARTICLE Xll - NAMI NAME and LOGO

1. This Organization acknowledges that NAMI controls the use of the name, acronym and
logos of NAMI and that their uses by this corporation shall be in accordance with NAMI policy.

2. Upon termination of affiliation with or charter by NAMI, the uses of these names, acronyms
and logos by this Affiliate member shall cease.

ARTICLE XIil - AMENDMENTS
Any proposed amendment to the affiliate bylaws is to be presented in writing to the entire
general membership at least 30 days before the meeting at which it is to be voted on.

Ratification of the amendment requires a favorable vote by at least two-thirds of the members in
good standing present at the meeting.
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NAMI Lexington
Policies and Procedures of the Governing Body and Staff

. PROCEDURE FOR RECORDING ACTION TAKEN AT REGULAR AND CALLED
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND GENERAL MEMBERSHIP

At the scheduled and called meetings of the board and general membership of NAMI
Lexington, a designated staff person or board member will record all action items per
Roberts Rules of Order in the Minutes of the meeting.

The minutes from the previous meeting will be reviewed at the next regular meeting and
upon approval, will be filed either in hard copy or electronically for a minimum of seven
years.

The following information is for reference for the recording secretary.

In the meetings of ordinary societies, there is no object in reporting the debates; the
duty of the secretary, in such cases, is mainly to record what is "done" by the assembly,
and not what is said by the members. The minutes should show:

 Kind of meeting, "regular” (or stated) or "special," or "adjourned regular" or
"adjourned special”;

» Name of the organization or assembly;

« Date/time of meeting and place, when it is not always the same;

» The fact of the presence of the regular chairman and secretary, or in their
absence the names of their substitutes,

« Whether the minutes of the previous meeting were read and approved, or
approved as corrected, and the date of the meeting if other than a regular
business meeting;

« All main motions (except such as were withdrawn) and motions that bring a main
question again before the assembly, stating the wording as adopted or disposed
of, and the disposition--including temporary disposition (with any primary and
secondary amendments and adhering secondary motions then pending;

« Secondary motions not lost or withdrawn where needed for clarity of the minutes;

» Previous notice of motions;

» Points of order and appeals, and reasons the chair gives for the ruling;

o Time of adjournment.

Generally the name is recorded of the mover, but not of the seconder, unless ordered
by the assembly. When corrections to the minutes are made by the assembly, the
corrections are made in the written text of the minutes being approved, and the minutes
of the meeting where they are corrected merely state that the minutes were approved
“as corrected”, without actually stating the details of those corrections.

The secretary should sign the minutes, and in some societies the minutes are also

signed by the president. When the minutes are approved, the word "Approved" should
be written on the minutes with the secretary’s initials and the date.
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NAMI Lexington
Policies and Procedures of the Governing Body and Staff

The essentials of a record should be entered, as previously stated, and when a count
has been ordered or where the vote is by ballot, the number of votes on each side
should be entered. When the voting is by roll call, a list of the names of those voting on
each side should be entered, and those answering “Present’, and enough names of
those present, who fail to respond, to reflect that a quorum was present.

Where the regular meetings are held weekly, monthly, or quarterly, the minutes are read
at the opening of each day's meeting, and, after correction should be approved. Where
the meetings are held several days in succession with recesses during the day, the
minutes are read at the opening of business each day. If the next meeting of the
organization will not be held for a long period, as six months or a year, the minutes that
have not been read previously should be read and approved before final adjournment. If
this is not practical, then the executive committee or a special committee should be
authorized to correct and approve them. A special meeting does not approve minutes,
and its minutes should be approved at the next regular meeting.

When the reading of the minutes is dispensed with they can afterwards be taken up at
any time when nothing is pending. If not taken up previously, they come before the
assembly at the next meeting before the reading of the later minutes.

For additional information, refer to RONR 10th ed. pp. 451-458.

Robert's Rules says that all MAIN motions should be shown in the minutes. However, at
a meeting, the secretary will have a need to record nearly all motions and what was
done (their disposition), recording details that are not intended to show up in the final
draft to be submitted for approval at the next regular meeting.

These notes will then be edited and condensed so that secondary motions, e.g.
amendments, are not listed separately in the minutes, but are incorporated into the final
wording that is the exact same wording used by the chair in putting the question to a
vote and/or otherwise disposing of the main motion. The final draft will show all MAIN
motions, as amended, and will not show the evolution of the wording of a motion during
its amendment. Thus, a half-dozen handwritten pages may become a single typewritten

page.

For example, the final draft minutes may be worded as follows: After amendment, a
motion by H.M. Robert was adopted, "that the club purchase a new laptop computer for
use by the secretary in preparing minutes and other correspondence, at a cost not to
exceed $2,500."

The fact that the motion was amended is mentioned only parenthetically, without
providing details.
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NAMI Lexington
Policies and Procedures of the Governing Body and Staff

ll. GOVERNING BODY REVIEW of Annual Tax Return (Form 990)

The Executive Committee and the Finance Committee of the NAMI Lexington Board of
Directors will thoroughly review the completed Form 990 (annual tax return) prior to the
filing of the return. The President of the Board of Directors will preside over the review.
The completed Form 990 will also be made available to the committees and the full
Board of Directors a minimum of 15 days prior to filing deadline. Any questions from the
board regarding the completed Form 990 will be directed to the President of the board.
Another area of controversy with the development of the Form 990 is whether the
exempt organization's governing board is required to review the Form 990 before filing
(Line 10). The proposed instructions make it clear that the IRS's principal interest is
whether such a review took place, and if so, how (although the inference is that such a
review is preferred practice). Details concerning the review (who conducted it, whether it
was conducted before or after filing, the extent of the review) are to be described on
Schedule O.

The Executive Committee together with the Finance Committee of the NAMI Lexington
Board of Directors will thoroughly review the completed Form 990 (annual tax return)
prior to the filing of the return. The President of the Board of Directors will preside over
the review. The completed Form 990 will be made available to the committees and the
full Board of Directors a minimum of 21 days prior to the filing deadline. Any questions
regarding the completed Form 990 will be directed to the Finance Committee for review
with the tax preparer. The review will be completed a minimum of 7 days prior to the
filing deadline.

All governing documents, Form 990, conflict of interest policy and financial statements
are available by request to the public. A notice of the availability of documents is posted
on the NAMI Lexington website (http://namilex.org) and sent to the general membership
annually.
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NAMI Lexington
Policies and Procedures of the Governing Body and Staff

lll. Document Retention and Destruction Policy

Purpose

In accordance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which makes it a crime to alter, cover up,
falsify, or destroy any document with the intent of impeding or obstructing any official
proceeding, this policy provides for the systematic review, retention and destruction of
documents received or created by NAMI Lexington in connection with the transaction
of organization business. This policy covers all records and documents, regardless of
physical form, contains guidelines for how long certain documents should be kept and
how records should be destroyed. The policy is designed to ensure compliance with
federal and state laws and regulations, to eliminate accidental or innocent destruction of
records and to facilitate NAMI Lexington’s operations by promoting efficiency and
freeing up valuable storage space.

Document Retention

NAMI Lexington foliows the document retention procedures outlined below. Documents
that are not listed, but are substantially similar to those listed in the schedule will be
retained for the appropriate length of time.

Corporate Records
The following records will be kept permanently:
e Annual Reports to Secretary of State/Attorney General
Articles of Incorporation
Board Meeting and Board Committee Minutes
Board Policies/Resolutions
By-laws
Construction Documents
Fixed Asset Records Permanent
IRS Application for Tax-Exempt Status (Form 1023)
IRS Determination Letter
State Sales Tax Exemption Letter

The following records will be kept as individually noted:
e Contracts (after expiration) - 7 years
o Correspondence (general) - 3 years

Accounting and Corporate Tax Records
The following records will be kept permanently:
¢ Annual Audits and Financial Statements
o Depreciation Schedules
e General Ledgers
e |RS 990 Tax Returns
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